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TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The trustees present their fourth report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the
charitable company for the period ended 1st September 2022 to 31 August 2023. The trust operates 6
schools: Holy Trinity Catholic School has 729 (2022: 709) on roll, Archbishop lisley Catholic School and Sixth
Form for pupils aged 11 to 18 has 1149 (2022: 1,156) on roll, Holy Souls Catholic Primary School for pupils
aged 4 to 11, has 376 (2022: 376) on roll, The Rosary Catholic Prdmary School for pupils aged 4 to 11, has
377 (2021: 403) on roll, St Chad's Catholic Primary School for puplls aged 4 to 11, has 205 on roll (2022:
205) and St Joseph's Catholic Primary School for puplls aged 4 to 11 has 201 (2022: 201) on roll. A total of
3,037 puplls on roll, October 2022 census.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee with no share capital (Registration Number: 11844357}
and Is an exempt charity. The charitable company’s memorandum and articles of assoclation are the primary
governing documents of the Academy Trust. The trustees of St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company
are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law. The charitable company is
known as St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company.

Details of the trustees who served during the year except as noted are included in the Reference and
Administrative Details on page 3.

Members’ Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in
the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before they
ceased to be a member.

Trustees’ Indemnities

St Teresa of Calcutta Multl Academy Company has in place directors and trustees liability insurance indemnity
cover to a limit of £5m.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

There are clearly defined and approved procedures for the selaction and appointment of trustees which are
outfined in the company’s Arlicles of Assoclation. These include application, shortlisting and interview
procedures. Consideration is given to the skills of trustees which would enhance the effectiveness of the trust.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Tralning of Trustees

An induction pack containing relevant documentation needed fo undertake the role is provided to ail newly
appointed trustees. The induction pack describes their role as a trustees and gives some basic information
about the academy and the governing body. A range of training is also offered to trustees each year. Training
undertaken will depend on their experience. The Academy Trust subscribes fo a Governor Development
Service to ensure adequate fraining is obtained.

Organisational Structure

The structure consists of four levels: The Members, The Trustees, The Advisory Education Board and the
SLT. The aim of the management structure is to devolve responsibility and encourage involvement in decision
making at all levels.

The trustees are responsible for setting general policy, adopting an annual plan and budget, monitoring the
academy through the use of budgets and making major decisions about the direction of the academy, capital
expenditure and staff appointments.

"The Senior Leadership Team of each school control each school at an executive level, implementing the
policies agreed by the Trustees and reporting back to their Local Governing Body and Trustees. Senior
Leadsrs are also responsible for the authorisation of spending and the appointment of staff as laid down in the
Scheme of Delegation.”

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

When setting pay for key management personnel, the Academy Trust gives consideration to the latest School
Teachers' Pay and Conditions provisions. In doing so, it considers the permanent responsibilities of each role,
the specific challenges to each role as well as all other relevant considerations. One such element of this is
the number of students that the Academy Trust is responsible for. This incorporates the number of students
by each Key Stage as well as the learning needs of puplls within each School.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd)

Arrangemants for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel {cont'd)

The pay of key management personnel also reflects the performance of each member of staff on an annual
basis. The school’s will continue to use external national and sub-national benchmarking analysis to compare
its pay structure against that of other schools and academies as It has done in the past and when setting
executive pay will reflect the Academy Trust Handbook ensuring lts decisions follow a robust evidence-based
process and are a reasonable and defensible reflection of the individual’s role and responsibilities.

Trade union facility time
During the year there were no trade union officlals represented at the trust.

Connected Organisations, including Related Party Relationships

St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company was incorporated on 25 February 2019 and became a multi
academy trust from 1 May 2019 including under its control Holy Trinity Catholic School, Archbishop lisley
Catholic School and Sixth Form and Holy Souls Catholic Primary Scheol. It expanded on 1 September 2021
with the addition of St Chad's Catholic Primary School, St Joseph's Catholic Primary School and The Rosary
Catholic Primary School.

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objects and Aims

The Academy Trust's objects are specifically restricted to the following: -

a) to advance for the public banafit education In the Unlted Kingdom, In particular but without prejudice to
the generallty of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, camying on, managing and developing a
school offering a broad and balariced curriculum and meeting the needs of students.

To achleve this, the academy Identified the following priorities for the year:-

e To ensure that all pupils reach expected standards of attainment and make at least good and
Increasingly outstanding progress.

e To develop the leaming-centrad leadership skills of all staff and govemnors to a consistently outstanding
quality.

e Todevelop the quality of teaching and leaming so that 100% is good or outstanding.

¢ To develop the skills, performance and capacity of teaching and support staff sc that they become
reflective practitioners, working fo a consistently high standard.

s To ensure that the soclal and emotional experiences of all leamers are positive and rewarding.

Principal Actlvitles
At St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy, we work in partnership with young people, parents and carers to

ensure that every student will;

e  Feel safe, happy and healthy.

Enjoy high quality learning opportunities, in a school at the leading edge of innovation.

Feel chailenged and inspired to achiave excellence in every aspact of their lives.

Become confident, enterprising, creative leamers, fully equipped for life and work.

Become fully-rounded and responsible citizens, making a positive contribution to the school, local,

national and global community.

Objects, Strategies and Actlvities

To meet these prioritles the academy has adoptad a number of strategies and activities that include: -

s To ensurs a revised system of whole-schoo! quality assurance and self-evaluation has greater impact on
student outcomes.

¢ 'To develop a learning and teaching modsl to engage alt learmers and encourage independence.”
To ensure provision is personalised to the needs of all learners.
To embed high quality schemes of learning to ensure quality first teaching with a clear focus on
developing pupils towards independence.
To further develop intervention, provision and support for learners to enable all to experience sticcess.
To ensure the effective use of pupil performance data and consequent intervention to improve pupil
outcomes.

a  To further develop innovative, dynamic and strategic senior leadership and govermance.
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd)

Publlc Benefit

Trustees have consideration to the Charity's Commission's general guidance on public benefit and in
patticular to its supplementary guidance on education. As noted above, the Academy Trust's objectiva is to
advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom.

STRATEGIC REPORT

The trustees present their report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the charitable
company for the perod ended 31 August 2023. For this audited period, the trust operated two secondary
Catholic schools and four Catholic Primary schools: Holy Trinity Catholic School, Archbishop lisley Gatholic
School and Sixth Form, Holy Souls Catholic Primary School, St Chad's Catholic Primary School, St Joseph's
Catholic Primary School and The Resary Catholic Primary School.

The vision of our MAC is inspired by the example of St. Teresa of Calcutta and the virtues and values shown
in her life and work. We expect all who work and study In our schools to:

¢ Have the courage to challenge themselves to change their world by promoting 'The Comman Good'.
Show compassion for others, respecting diversity and responding to need.

Develop their faith and to become more spiritual

Appreciate Gospel Values

Seek a fulfitling vocation by learing effectively so as to enrich their own lives and become active citizens
of the world.

The St Teresa of Calcutta MAC Is courageous in its ambition fo provide excellent experiences and
outstanding outcomes for all young people in our community. Our collective vision of the essence of a Catholic
education is that it offers an attractive, sthos-led proposition to pupils, staff and the communities we serve
and, in doing so it sets the St Teresa of Calcuita MAC apart.

Inspired by the example of St. Teresa of Calcutta our family of schools are underpinned by the motto,
developed by our pupils, Dream Belleve Achieve. Our MAC is compassionate and understanding to the variety
of needs that our young people bring. In this inclusive academy, everyone is valued, and nobody gets left
behind or forgotten. As St. Teresa said: ‘Every time you smile at someone, it is an act of love, a gift to that
person, a beautiful thing. The most terrible poverty is loneliness, and the feeling of being unloved.' Everyone
who is part of this multi academy |s valued as a unique individual created in the image of God.

We expect high standards In all our schools. These are avidenced by our commitment to an innovative
approach to high quality curriculum provision and teaching and leaming. It is through these principles that
children develop a love of faith, learning and scholarshlp. Each young person has unique talents that are
nurtured and encouraged as they discover thelr path in life.

St Teresa of Calcutta MAC Is progressing in its journay and will build upon the reputafion and achievemants of
its six schools. Their combined strengths, fogether with opportunities for working across the MAC, Will now
support the further recruitment and retention of the very best teachers. Each school maintains ite individual
character and continues to take an active part in its local networks such as the Central and East Collegiate,
Sursum Corda and Caritas. The MAC has further plans for growth with an additional 14 schools in discussion
regarding academy conversion.

Review and Achievements

School Improvement has been a major focus this academic year and ail academies have worked with an
external School Impravement Partner to review and develop their school improvement plans. They have also
all benefitted from extemnal safeguarding reviews.

The appointment of a Strategic Lead for School Improvement who takes up post fult ime from September
2023 will further enhance the offer to our academias focussing on supporting school leaders, sharing best
practice and enhanced continuing professional development for all staff,

The MAC received Schoo! Condition Allocation funding this academic year which has allowed extensive
capital investment in all of our academies including replacement boilers, tollet refurbishments, upgrades to
classroom AV equipment, renewed Wifi systems, upgraded fire doors, asbestos removal and various outdoor
refurbishments that included forest schao! works, parimeter fencing, playground resurfacing and canopy
instaliations.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd}

Results
Summer 2023 outcomes were awarded as a result of External Public Examinations. National estimates are
awaiting further revision.
Grade 5or
Numbers of | Progress 8 above In
pancolxame puplis et | Scoras g | English & | ARinment
Key Stage 4 | Description Maths
GCSEs
Holy Trinity Cathollc School 127 -0.21 36.20%|  46.40%] 40.6
Archbishop lisley Cathelic School 207 -0.08] 30%] 30%) 1.8
England — state funded schools -0.02f 38.40%] 43%) 46.4
England - all schools -0.04| 35.10%]  39.90%l 44.3
Numbers of Students A:I;I;vlng
or
students | Progress 8 ] Average Jcompleting higher In st
School Name with an A Score & | result Point | thelr malin loast 2
level exam | Description Score study L fachlitating
entry programme] " _ ubjects
Holy Trinlty Cathollc School N/
Archbishop lisley Catholle Schoal +0.67 (Val 34,55 (por D%L
53] Added) antry) 97. 8%l
overal
[England — state funded schools - 31.14 95.30%] 14.30
England - all schools - 32.39| |  17.00%]
Year 2
Good Level of Development| Y1 Phonics | Y2 Ro8ng | \yng [Yoar2 Maths]
' * -~ E"”“"‘.“’ Expacl:d 1. e
Holy Souls 52.30% 79.10% 61.70% 51.70% 65.00%
St Chad's 66.70% 83.30% 60.00% 650.00% 63.30%
St Joseph's 66.70% 63.30% 62.10% 37.90% 58.60%
The Rosary 62.20% 70.70% 68.30% 63.30% 71.70%
MAC Average ) 61.98% 74.10% 63.03% 53.23% 64.65%
e | oy | Teeors | ehene | vonk
Holy Souls 52.60% 45.10% 52.60% 54.40% 36.80%
St Chad's 81.50% 74.10% 85.20% 88.90% 74.10%
St Joseph's 86.20% 65.50% 86.20% 86.20% 62.10%
The Rosary, 63.30% 61.20% 79.60% 83.70% 53.10%
MAC Avara!e 70.90% 62.48% 75.90% 78.30% 56.53%
Y6 Reading | Y6 Writing I YeEGPS . | YéMaths | Y&RWM
High Greater Depth High High High _|
Holy Souls 15.80% 10.50% 21,10% 15.80% 7.00%
St Chad's 33.30% 3.70% 48.10% 18.50% 3.70%
St Joseph's 20.70% 0.00% 65.50% 37.90% 0.00%
The Rosary 14.30% 4,10% 26.50% 26.50% 0.00%
MAC Average 21.03% 4.58% 40.30% 24.68% 2.68%
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TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd)
Results (cont'd)

KS2 Reading | KS2 Writing | KS2 Maths

. Progress Pn_:grass Profiress
Holy Souls -2.65 -1.51 -2.53
St Chad's 3.01 0.66 2.88
St Joseph's 1.55 -0.97 2.83
The Rosary -0,90 -0,39 2.89
MAC AveranLe 0.25 -0.55 1.52

Key Financlal Performance Indicators

The trust established a financlal budget at the start of the year and then monitored performance against
budget during the ysar. Considerable work is undertaken in forecasting to ensure the continued financial
viability of the academy. Trustees play a key role in holding the Senior Leadership Team to account in key
financlal matters. Key financial performance indicators for Holy Trinity Catholic School, Archbishop llsley
Catholic School, Holy Souls Catholic Primary School, St Chad's Catholic Primary School, St Joseph’s Catholic

Primary School and The Rosary Catholic Primary Schocl are detailed below:

Holy Trinity Catholic School 2023| 2022
Puplil numbers 720} 684
Staff costs as a % of total revenue grant income 76%| 82%
Steff costs as a % of totaf costs 76% 80%
Capital expenditure per pupil £171 £78
Archbishop lislay Catholic School and Sixth Form 2023 2022,
Pupil numbers 1,149 1,152
Staff costs as a % of total revenue grant income 72% 82%
Staff costs as a % of total costs 75% 79%
Capital expenditure per pupil £414 £22
Holy Souls Catholic Primary School 2023 2022
Pupll numbers | | 376 386
Staff costs as a % of total revenue grant income 74% 84%
Staff costs as a % of total costs 80% 79%
Capital expenditure per pupil £274 £5
St Chad’s Catholic Primary School| 2023 2022
Pupil numbers | ] 205 199
Staff costs as a % of total revenue grant income 64% 83%
Staff costs as a % of total costs 73% 79%
Capital expenditure per pupil £1,278 £25
$t Joseph's Cathollc Primary School 2023 2022
Pupil numbers { | 201 201
Staff costs as a % of total revenue grant income 71% 74%
Staff costs as a % of total costs 75% 82%
Capital expanditure per pupil £194 £90
The Rosary Catholic Primary School 2023 2022
Pupil numbers 377 303
Staff costs as a % of total revenue grant income T4% 78%
Staff costs as a % of total costs 76% 80%
Capital expenditure per pupil £24 £13

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trusiees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy
Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it
continues to adopt the golng concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concem basis can be found In the Statement of Accounting policies.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

The principal source of funding for both Academies is the General Annual Grant. Most of the Academy Trusts
income is obtained from the ESFA In the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular
purposes. The grants received from the ESFA during the period ended 31 August 2023 and the associated
expenditure are shown as restricted funds In the statement of financial activities.

During the year ended 31 August 2023..total expenditure of £22,703,000 (2022: £21,493,000), was more than
covered by recurrent grant funding from the ESFA and other incoming resources. Excluding restricted fixed
assets funds and transfers on conversion, there was a surplus before transfers for the year of £350,000

(2022: £89,000 surplus).
Af 31 August 2023 the net book value of fixed assets was £1,621,000 (2022: £915,000) and movements tn

fangible fixed assets are shown in note 13 to the financial statements. The assets were usad exclusively for
providing education and the associated support services to the puplls of the School.

The Local Govemment Pension Scheme (LGPS) figures as at 31 August 2023 are based on projecting
forward the estimated position at 8 January 2018 and assuming that the experience over the year, apart from
investment retums, has been in line with the assumptions made at the start of the year.

The estimated FRS 102 deflcit/surplus at 31 August 2023 Is £6,685,000 (2022: £8,167,000 deflcit). The maln
reason for tha decrease in the deficit is baecause of:

e increased yields on bonds driving an increase In the discount rate and therefore decrease In the present
value of scheme liabilities
» decreases in the assumed life expectancy of people retiring today and in the future

The cash balance at 31st August 2023 is £4,523,708.
It should be noted that the balance sheset, profit and loss and statement of recognised gains and losses

figures will be volatile over time. This is generally because the FRS102 liabilites are largely linked to
corporate bond ylelds whereas the scheme invests a large part of its assets In equities.

Financial and Risk Management Objectives and Policles
The Trust's financial and risk management objectives are documented in Its:

+ Officlal budgets

e Scheme of delegation

«  Financial regulaticns

e Rigk management policy

These documents are available on request, and particular items which warrant specific disclosure are noted
within this annual report.

Reserves Policy

The ftrustess review the reserve levels of the academy annually. This review encompasses the nature of
Incomse and expendlture streams, the need to match Income with commitments and the nature of reserves.
The trustees have determined that the appropriate level of reserves should be equivalent to at least one
month's worth of the General Annua! Grant funding. The reason for this Is to provide sufficiant working capital
to cover delays between spending and receipt of grants and to provide a cushion to deal with unexpected
emergencies such as urgent maintenance. Any surplus ressrves built up by the Academy are eammarked to

& planned capital expenditurs;
»  improve the qua[fty of learning and social spaces within the school;

Reserves as at 31 August 2023 were £2,147,000 {2022: £1,902,000) after deductions had been made for the

tangible fixed asset funds of £1,687,000 (2022: £898,000) and the long term LGPS pension deficit of
£6,685,000 (2022: £8,167,000).
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TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 {cont'd)

Flnanclal Position

The academy held fund balances at 31 August 2023 of £2,147,000 (2022: £1,902,000), after allowing for the
pension deficit of £6,685,000 (2022: £8,167,000) and restricted fixed asset funds of £1,607,000 (2022:
£898,000); comprising £1,165,000 (2022: £1,130,000) of restricted funds and £982,000 (2022; £772,000) of
unrestricted general funds.

Investment Policy

All investments are made In accordance with the policy of the trust. The trust's policy on investments are one
of minimum risk with all investments being held with the trust's bankers. The trust will nevertheless seek to
maximise interest recsipts within this arrangement. Investments are made with regard to Charity Commission
guidance in relation to investments.

PRINCIPLE RISKS AND LUNCERTAINTIES

The board has considered the risks faced by the trust throughout its normal operational business. It has
sought fo address the risks faced by the trust by establishing appropriate governance and management
arrangements, including the appointment of senior staff and other managers, and establishing robust
operational policies. This has included consideration of those risks impacting on trustees' responsibilities to
ensure the trust's estate is safe, wefl maintained and complies with relevant regulaticns. The board considers
that these arrangements have been effective throughout the year being reported.

The bhoard intends to bulld on this success by aestablishing a formal risk management policy, which will formally
document the managerial action that is taking place, and should enable future risk management to be more
systematic,

At the time of reporting, the frust's identified key risks are:

e The risk of achievement in core subjects being below expectations;
s lLoss of personal and sensitive information;

¢  The risk of national and local funding reductions; and

s Risks associated with pupi! safeguarding

Mitigating action, both current and planned, has been identified to address these risks. This Is also true of all
other risks that have been formally identified which have a lower level of impact and/or likelihcod.

Risk Management

The major rigks to which the Academy Trust Is exposed have been Identiflad on the academy’s Risk Register,
owned by the CFQO and Raesources committee. Trustees have reviewed the risks to which the Academy Trust
is exposed and systems and procedures have been put in place to mitigate these.

Fundraising
Under the provisions of the Charities (Protection and Social Investment) Act 20186 the academy trust approach
to fundraising practices is as follows:

Fundraising for Holy Trinity Catholic School, Archbishop lisley Catholic School, Holy Souls Catholic Primary
School, St Chad’s Catholic Primary School, St Joseph's Catholic Primary School and The Rosary Catholic
Primary School will be led and managed by each school. All activities undertaken by each school in relation to
fund raising require approvai by the relevant Local Governing Body and CEO.

Ptans for Future Perlods

The deficit position of the Local Govemment Pension Scheme may result in an increase in employers pension
contributions over a period of years. The Trust has revisited its current business plans and budgets and
ascertained how the pension costs might impact on the budgets in the future, plans have also been
considered concerning increased costs in national insurance as a result of the cessation of contracting out, as
weli as likely national funding reductions.
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Auditors

In so far as the trustees are aware:

¢ there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unawars;

e the trustees have taken alf steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information;

s comespondence from the ESFA .

The auditors, UHY Hacker Young (Birmingham) LLP, are willing to continue In office and a resolution to
appoint them will be proposed at the annual general meeting.

The Trustees' Report incorporating a strateglc report has not yet been approved by the board of trustees.

Professor Paul
14 December 20423

B e N
n = Chief Executive Officer

14 December 2023
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Scope of Responsibllity

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy
Company has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system Is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achleve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against matarial misstatement or loss.

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and competency
framework for governancs,

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibllity to Professor Paul Ryan, CSEL, as Accounting
Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement
between St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also
responsible for reporting to the board of trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance Iincluded here supplements that described in the trustees' report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The board of trustees has formally met 5 imes since 1 September 2022.
Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of trustees was as foliows:

Trustees Meetings attendec Out of a Possibl
Frances McGarry 5

Sean Devlin

Mary Mills

Mary Higgins

Sue Hughes

Andrew Kennedy

David Whale

John Ryan (resigned due to work pressures )

Conflicts of Interest

St Teresa of Calcutta MAC maintains an up-to-date pecuniary interest register which is published on the MAC
website. There is also a standing item on all Trust Board agendas for declarations to be made. The Trust Board is
always quorate when making decisions and any trustee who is deemed to be conflicted removed from such
decisions. A directive from the Diocese that the Trustees should not hold a position on local school governing
bodies has also been taken on board and plans fo address this are now fully implemented, all such dual roles were
ended by 1 May 2023.

Govemance Reviews

The Board of Trustees of St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company reviews its governance arrangements on
an annual basis. During the year a self-assessment governance review took place in September 2023 using the
Confederation of Schoo! Trusts (CST) Self-Assessment Framework In line with the CST best practice framework an
external review will take place in 2024,

The Board of trustees has met 5 times this year. In addition to board meetings, effective oversight of the academy
trust funds is maintained hy:

& 3 additional meetings of the Resources committee and ad hoc meetings on matters of financial importance;
»  review of monthly management accounts;
¢  CSEL and CFO meet weekly.

Review of Value for Money

As accounting officer the CSEL CEO has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good value in
the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and
wider societal outcomes achieved in retum for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during
each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use
of benchmarking data where appropriate. 3 value for money improvements, as required by the Academies Accounts
Direction, have been provided below,

Wwe b Org
AT RTOON OO
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The Risk and Control Framework
The St Teresa of Calcutia Multi Academy Company system of internal financlal control is based on a framework of

regular management information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of
delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:

o comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which
are revlewed and agreed by the board of trustees;

e regular reviews by the Resources and Premises Committee of reports which indicate financial performance

against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capltal works and expendlture programmes;

setting targets to measure financlal and other performance;

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

e identification and management of risks.

The board of frustees has consldered the need for a specific internal audit function and has continued from 1

September 2021 the reciprocal arrangement with the Business Manager at Kings Norton Girls School as the

internal Auditor. The intemal Auditors role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of

checks on the Academy Trust’s financial systems. |n particular the checks carried out in the current period included:

e payroll;

» Income;

¢  purchasing and procurement;

e general accounting and year end procedures.

On a termly basis, the internal auditor will visit the trust to review specific areas of the systems of control and on the
discharge of the board of trustees financial responsibilities. A repert will be provided on a termly basis.

The Internal Auditor delivered their schadule of work as planned and made the following recommendations:

e Review procurement procedures to ensure purchase orders are ralsad;

» Complete a full personnel fils audit to ensure all paperwork is complete and staff contracts up to date, signed
and filed;

s Review data management policy at MAC level to include GDPR.

Review of Effectiveness

As Accounfing Officer, of St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy, the CSEL has responsibliity for reviewing the

effectivenass of the system of inlernal control, During the year In question the review has been Informed by:

s the work of the internal auditor;

e the work of the external auditor;

o the financial management and governance self agsessment process;

e the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the development and

maintanance of the internal confrol framework;
e ESFA School Resource Management Advisor;
e correspondencs from ESFA.
The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of Internal
control by the Resources/Audit Committee.

Approved by order of the members of the board of frustees on 14 December 2023 and signed on Its behalf by:

e » @

Chair of Trustees
14 December 2023
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd)

Review of Value for Money (cont'd)

1  Review of Alternative Provision Providers = Archb lisle
Escalating offsite Altemative Provision Costs led to a quality assurance review of all offsite providers.
Economic and efficiency valuations were carried out resulting in Archbishop lisley not renewling contracts with
two of its former providers, resulting in a 50K saving. Leadership at the school are now working on a rolling
programme to further reduce the need for pupiis to taught offsite.

2 The Trust's Strateqlc procurement of utllitles

The Trust's Strategic procurement of utilities across all six schools was underpinned by its statutory duty to
ensure resources are procured in an efficient, effective and economic matter, Across six schools there were a
variety of contracts with different suppliers. The LA advised MAC's could no longer buy into corporate
procurement. The decision was made to move all six schools to one supplier in order to remove the constraint
of different pricing sfructures, contract renewal dates etc. Due to energy market pricing being at an all-time
high, length of contract was an important driving factor in the selection process. West Mercia agreed fixed rate
contracts for a 3 year period many other suppliers would only agree fo a minimum period of 5 years. In terms
of efficiency and effectiveness West Mercia provide a bill validation service which ensures all charges are
correct and based on ‘real time' usage rather than estimated usage, this in tum has reduced staff hours
investigating charges. They also provide an in-depth portal which provides clear overview of energy usage in
terms of ensuring efficient and economic use of resources.

3 Heating Controls & Associated Works — Holy Trinity
The boiler controls at Holy Trinity were the 'Jel' system, originally designed to be controlled centrally via

Birmingham City Council. This system is now defunct and as such the boiler was being operated manually
which was not an efficient method of contrelling the heating.

Replacement boilers controls and switch gear wers installed allowing the heating system to be regulated via a
thermostat and timers ensuring energy efficiency and cost savings.

4 Review of Staffing Structures
The Trust annually reviews staffing costs in terms of curriculum delivery, teaching, and non-teaching staff. This

year the Trust have overseen recruitment across all schools in the Trust. Schools must now provide both the
CSEL/CEQ & CFO a business case ragarding proposed new appointments. Careful consideration by the Trust
coupled with benchmarking exercises ald the decision making to ensure the efficiency and effectiveness of
curriculum delivery costs. This year Leadership costs at Archbishop [Isley where reviewed and the opportunity
was taken to reduce the size of the leadership team. The Trust has reviewed future staffing expenditure in
terms of falling pupil numbers across Primary schools, with this in mind a number of fixed term positions were
offered rather than permanent roles.

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of intemal contro! is designed to manage risk fo a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absclute assurance
of effectiveness.

The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and priotitise the risks to the
achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, fo evaluate the llkelihood of those risks being realised
and the Impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of
intemal control has been in place in St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company for the year ended 31 August
2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capaclty to Handle Risk

The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of
trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy
Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the year ended 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of
the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees and
Resources Committee.
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STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The trustees (who act as trustees of St Teresa of Calcutta Mulfi Academy Company and are aleo the
directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the
Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction issued
by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable (aw and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees fo prepare financlal statements for each financial year. Under
company law the trustees must not approve the financlal statements uniess they are satlsfled that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources
and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these
financial statements, the trustees are required to:

e select suitabla accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

¢ observe the methods and principles in the Charitles SORP 2019 and the Academiss Accounts
Direction 2022 to 2023;

» maks judgments and eatimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards FRS102 have been foliowed, subject to any
materlal departures disciosed and explained in the financial statements; and

¢ prepare the financlal statements on the going concem basls unless It Is inapproprate to
presume that the academy will continue In business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient fo show and
explain the charitable compeny's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006.They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
charltable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company
applies financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good
financlal management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DIE
have been applied for the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
goveming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

Appraved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 14 December 2023 and signed on its
behaif by:

Frances McGarry
Chair of Trustees
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STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
AUGUST 2023

As accounting officer of St Teresa of Calcutta Muitl Academy Company, | have considered my
responsibility to notlfy the Academy Trust board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with ESFA terms and
conditions of funding, Including for estates safety and management, under the funding agreement
between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State. As part of my consideration | have had due
regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2022.

| confirm that | and the Academy Trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or
impraper use of funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and
conditions of funding under the Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust
Handbook 2022 including responsibilities for estates safety and management.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been
discovered to ther than those noted below. If any instances are identified after the date of
this statement, these wi{l be notified to the board of trustees and the ESFA.

----------------------------------------------------

Professor Paul Ryan
Chief Exscutive Office
14 December 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ST TERESA OF CALCUTTA
MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Opinion

We have audited the financlal statements of St Teresa of Calcuita Multi Academy Gompany (the
charitable company) for the year ended 31 August 2023 which comprise Statement of Financial
Activities, the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Cash Flows and notes fo the financial statement,
Including significant accounting policies. The financlal reporting framework that has been applied In
their preparation Is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102
The Financlal Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of [reland (United Kingdom
Generally Acceptad Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skllis Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financlal statements:

® give a true and fair view of the state of the St Teresa of Calcutta Multl Academy Company's
affairs as af 31 August 2023 and of its Incoming resources and application of resources,
including income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with Unlted Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

s have been prepared In accordance with the requirsments of the Companles Act 2006, the
Charities SORP 2018 and the Academies Accounts Diraction 2022 to 2023

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK))
and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of cur report. We are independent of
the charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other sthical responsibllities In accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtalned is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going cancern
In auditing the financlal statements, we have concluded that the trustees’ use of the golng concern

basis of accounting In the preparation of the financial stetement Is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identiffled any materlal uncertaintles relating to
avents or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the St Teresa of
Calcutta Multi Academy Company's ability to continue as a going concern for a pericd of at least
twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the frustees with respect to going concermn are
described in the relevant sections of this repott.

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the

financial statements and our auditor's report theraon. The trustees are responsible for the other
Information contained within the financlal statements. Our opinlon on the financlal statementa does
not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise expliclily stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materiafly inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
course of the audit, or otherwlse appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a
material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

Woe have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ST TERESA OF CALCUTTA
MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd)

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit:

e the information given in the trustees' report (incorporating the Strategic Report, and the
Trustees Report) for the financial year for which the financlal statements are prepared is
conslistent with the financial statements; and

o the trustees’ report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and Its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not idenfified material misstatements in the trustees’
report. We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006
requires us tc report to you if, in our opinion:

* adaequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been raceived from branchas not visited by us; or

s the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

® certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

» we hava not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the trustees' responsibilities statement set out on page 16, the trustees
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give
a frue and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the St Teresa of
Calcutta Multl Academy Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
trustees either infend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operations, or have no reallstic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibllities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
-whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with iISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or eror and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the.
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularitles, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We
design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements
In respect of irregularities, Including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of
detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

Based on our understanding of the St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company and the industry
in which It operates, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and
regulations related to the acts by the St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company, which were
contrary to applicable laws and regulations including fraud, and we considered the extent to which
non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those
laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation of the financial statements such as
the Companies Act 2006, Charities SORP 2019 and Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023,
We evaluated management's incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the
financial statements (Iincluding the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal
risks were related to inflated revenue and the St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company's net
income for the year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ST TERESA OF CALCUTTA
MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd)

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the St Teresa of Caleutta Multi Academy Company's members, as a

bady, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006, Qur audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the St Teresa of Calcuita Multi Academy Company's members
those matters we ars required to state to them In an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibllity to anyone other than
the St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company's and the St Teresa of Calcutta Muli Academy
Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinlons we have

formed.

¥

(EPEINL VN

Malcolm Winston

Senior Statutory Auditor

UHY Hacker Young (Birmingham) LLP, Statutory Auditor
9-11 Vittorla Street

Birmingham

B1 3ND

14 December 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ST TERESA OF CALCUTTA
MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd}

Audit procedures performed included: review of the financial statement disclosures to underlying
supporting documentation, review of correspondence with and reports to the regulators, Inciuding
correspondence with the Education and Skllls Funding Agency review of correspondence with legal
advisors, enquiries of management and review of internal audlit reports in so far as they related to
the financial statements, and testing of journals and evaluating whether there was evidence of bias
by the trustaes that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations Is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, the less likely we would become aware of it. Also, the risk of not detecting a material
misstaternent due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or Intentional misrepresentations, or
through ¢oliusion.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive o those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud s higher than for one resutting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circurnstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the academy trust's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the trustees.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtalned, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the academy trust's ebility to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the academy trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financlal statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO
ST TERESA OF CALCUTTA MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS
FUNDING AGENCY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 6 July 2023 and further to the
requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency {(ESFA), as Included In the Academies
Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 we have cartled out an engagement to obtaln limited assurance
about whether, the expenditure disbursed and income received by the Academy Trust during the
pericd 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have been applied to the purposes identified by
Parliament and the financial fransactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to the St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company and the ESFA in
accordance with our engagement letter. Our review has been undertaken so that we might state to
the goveming body and the ESFA those matters we are required to state to it in a report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibllity to
anycne other than St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company and the ESFA, for our work, for
this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibllities of St Teresa of Calcutta Muiti Academy Company's accounting
officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of St Teresa of Caicutta Multi
Academy Company funding agreement with the Secretary of Stafte for Education dated 1 May
2019, and the Academy Trust Handbook extant from 1 September 2022 for ensuring that
expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and
the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govemn them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's
ethical guldance and are to abtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement
letter and the requirements of the Academies: Accounts Direction 2022 {o 2023. We report to you
whether, anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests thet in all
material respects, expenditure disbursed and income recelived during the period 1 September 2022
to 31 August 2023 have not been applied to purposes infended by Parliament and the finangcial
traneactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditers

and Reporting Accountants Issued by the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement
as defined In our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain
information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a
negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance
engagement and consequently does not enable us fo obtain assurance that we would bacome
aware of all significani matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagemant.
Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Qur engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and
propriety of the Academy Trust's income and expenditure.
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO
ST TERESA OF CALCUTTA MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS
FUNDING AGENCY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd}

Approach (con't)

Summary of the work undertaken was as follows:

* Analytical review of the Academy Trust's general activities are within the Academy Trusts
framework of authorities;

* Consideration of the evidence supporting the accounting officers statement on regularity,
propriety and compliance,

* Review of the general cantrol environment for the Academy Trust on financial statements and
oh regularity;

* Sample testing of expendlture transactions to ensure the activity Is permissible within the
Academy Trust's framework of authority;

* Confirmation that a sample of expenditura has bean appropriately authorised in accordance
with the Academy Trust's delegated authorities;

* Formal representations obtained from the board of trustees and the accounting officer
acknowledging the responsibilities including disclosing all non compliance with laws and
regulations specific to the authorlsing framework;

* Confirmation that any exira contractual payments such as severance and compensation
payments have been appropriately authorised;

* Review of credit card expenditure for any indication of personal use by staff, principal or
trustees;

* Review of specific terms of grant funding within the funding agreement;

* Review of reiated party transactions for connections with the principal/finance manager or
trustees;

* Review of income received in accordance with the activities permitted within the Academy
Trust's charitable objectives.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attenfion which suggests that in ali material
respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2022 to 31
August 2023 has not been applied to purposes intended by Pariament and the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

(% SIS V=TYN 'L;ﬁ‘zﬁ-f,effzw»vx.%f (& V"W"WP\N”) e

Reporting Accountant

UHY Hacker Young {Birmingham) L.LP
9-11 Vittoria Street

Birmingham

B1 3ND

14 December 2023
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023
{Including Income and Expenditure Account)

Restricted

Restricted Fixed
Unrestrictad General Assat Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2023 2022

Note £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Income from:;
Donstions and caplital grants 3 86 . 1,050 1,136 111
Transferred from local authorlty
on conversion 3830 - - - - (4,067)
Charitable activities:
- Funding for the Academy Trust's
educational operations 4 - 22,376 - 22,376 21,066
Other trading activities b 266 - - 266 235
Investment income 6 14 - - 14 -
Total 366 22,376 1,060 23,792 17,345
Expenditure on:
Ralsing funds 7 114 - - 114 109
Charitable activities:
- Academy Trust's educational
operations 7&8 - 22,278 311 22,589 21,384
Total 7 114 22,278 311 22,703 21,493
Net Income/{expenditure) 252 08 739 1,089 (4,148)
Transfars between funds 17 (42) (18) G0 . -

Other recognised gains and losses
Actuarial gain on defined benefit

pension schemes 28 - 1,437 - 1,437 11,371
Net movement In funds 210 1,517 799 2,526 7,223
Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward 772 (7,037} 898  (5,367) (12,590)
Total funds carrled forward 17 982 _ (5520) 1.697 _ (2,841) (5,367

All of the Academy Trust's activities derive from acquisitions and continuing operations during the above two
financial periods.
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023
Note 2023 2022
£'000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 13 1,621 915
1,621 215
Current asseis
Debtors 14 728 538
Cash at bank and in hand 4,524 6,970
5,252 7,508
Current liabllities
Craditors: Amounts falling due within one year 16 (2,969) (5,539)
Net current assets 2,283 1,969
Total assets less current liabilities 3,904 2,884
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 16 (60) (84)
Net assets excluding pension liabllity 3,844 2,800
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 28 (6,685) (8,167)
Total Not Assets (2,841} _ (5,367)
Funds of the Academy:
Restricted funds
- Fixed asset fund 17 1,697 898
- Restricted income fund 17 1,165 1,130
- Pension reserve 17 (6,6B5) (8,167)
Total rastricted funds (3,823 (6,139)
Unrestricted income fund 17 982 772
Total unrestricted funds 982 772
Total Funds (2,841) !5!367!

The financial statements on pages 23 to 46 were approved by the trustees and authorised for

issue on 14 December 2023 and signed on their behalf by:

yan

Chalr of Trustee
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities
Cash flows from Investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2022

Cash and cash squivalents at 31 August 2023

Notes

21

23

24

24

2023 2022
£'000 £'000
{2,469) 5,184
47 52
(24) (24)
(2,446) 5,212
6,970 1,758
4,524 8,970
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1 Statement of Accounting Policles
A summary of principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charlties : Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable In the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the
Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and ths Companies Act
2006.

St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company meets the definition of a public bensfit entity under FRS 102.

Transfer of State Malntained School to a Multl Academy Trust

The transfer of a state maintained schools to St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company involved the
transfer of identifiable assets and liabilities and the operation of the school for nil consideration and has been
accounted for under the acquisition accounting method,

The assets and liabilities transferred on conversion from the Locai Authority to an academy trust have been
valued at thelr fair value being a reasonable estimate of the current market value that the govemors would
expect to pay in an open market for an equivalent item. Their fair value is in accordance with the accounting
policies set out for St Teresa of Calcutta Catholic Multi Acadamy Company. The amounts have been
recognised under the appropriate balance sheet categories, with a corresponding net amount recognised as a
net gain/loss in the Statement of Financial Activities and analysed as donations transfarred from local authority
on conversion. Further detalls of the transactions are set out in note 30.

Going Concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to
continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year
from the date of authorisation for Issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the Academy Trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no
material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entiflement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

« Granis
Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown In the relevant funds on the
halance sheset. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditicne there
is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met, Where entitlement occurs before income
is recaived, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is
receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and racognised as a
iiability.

Capital granis are recognised in full when there is an entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the
asset on which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the batance shest in
the restricted fixed asset fund.

e Sponsorship income
Sponsoarship Income provided to the Academy Trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivabie, where receipt is probable and it can
be measured reliably.
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o Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basls where there is certainty of receipt and the amount can be

reliably measured.

o Other income
Other income, Including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.

e Donated goods, facilitles and services
Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, baing the expected proceeds from sale less the
expectad costs of sale. If it Is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, It Is recognised in stock and
‘Income from cother trading activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘income from
other trading activities’ and the proceads are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities’. Where it
Is impractical to fair value the items due to the voiume of low value items they are not recognised In the
financlal statements until they are sold. This income Is recognised within ‘income from other trading
activities’.
Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is iImpractical to measure this
reliably, in which case tha cost of the item to the donor should be usad. The gain is recognised as income
from donatlons and a corrssponding amount Is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and
depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the Academy Trust's accounting policies.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third
party, It Is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the
obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activily are made
up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity.
Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute
to more than one activity and support coste which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned
between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on
the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

e Expenditure on Ralsing Funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for Its charitable purposes and

includes costs of all fundraising activitles events and non-charitable trading.

s Charitable Actlvitles
These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educeafional operations, including support costs and

costs relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.
All resogurces expended are inclusive of imecoverable VAT.
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Tangible Fixed Assets
Assets costing £2,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depraciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful aconomic life. Whare there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of
the assst, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities
and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant asssts is charged directly to the
restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis on the cost of tangible fixed assets, to write them down to their
estimated residual values over their expected useful lives. The principal annual rates used for other assets are:

Site improvements 2%
Leaschold land and buildings 2%
Furniture and equipment 25%
Computer equipment and software 33.33%
Motor vehicle 20%

Assets In the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until they
are brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixad asset is cartied out if svents or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised In the
Statement of Flnancial Activities.

Where academies are operating under a licence to accupy, the land and buildings are not recognised as fixed
assets in the financial statements. This applies to the majority of the land and bulldinge occupied by St Teresa
of Calcutta Multi Academy Company whereby it does not own any of the sites. The schools sites are owned by
Birmingham Roman Catholic Diocesan Trustees and are made avallable to the schools by a Church
Supplemental Agreement. Birningham Roman Catholic Diocesan Trustees have given an undertaking to the
Secretary of State that they will not give the multi academy company less than two years notice to terminate
the occupation of the land and buildings.

Loasad assets

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Financial Instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financlal instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financlal assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured
at amortised cost as detailed in note 14, Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash af bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabiiities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instrument, and are measured at
amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments
disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has
aiready taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial
instrument.

Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the
Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within
categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable
purposes.
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Pensions Beneflts
Retirement bensfits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
(‘TPS") and the Local Govemment Pension Scheme ('LGPS’), These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as fo spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the Academy Trust In such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit methed. TPS Is a multi employer
scheme with no underlying assete fo assign between employers. Consequently the TPS Is therefore treated as
a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which
they relate.

The LGPS is a mulii funded employer scheme and the assets are held separatsiy from those of the academy
frust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities
are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent
fo the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabflitles.
The actuarlal valuations are obtained at least trlennlally and are updated at each balance shest date. The
amounts charged to net income/(expenditure) are the current service costs and the costs of the scheme
introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtallments.

They are Included as part of staff costs as Incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit lability/assst is also
recagnised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the Interest cost on the defined benefit
obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme
assets at the beginning of the perlod by the rate used fo discount the benefit obligations. The difference
between the interast income on the scheme asssts and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised
in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund Accounting

Unrestricted Income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charltable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the trustees. Restricted fixed asset funds are
resources which ars to be applied te spacific capltal purposas imposed by funders where the asset acquired or
created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency/Department for Education.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement
Estimates and judgements are coniinually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptlons will, by definition, seldom equel the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptlens that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment ta the carrylng amounts of essets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Govemment Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed In note 28, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2018 has
been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2022. Any differences between the
figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact cn the carrying
amount of the pensicn liability.
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Critical areas of Judgement

The critical judgements that the Trustees have made in the process of applying the Academy Trust's
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the statutory financial
statemants are discussed below:

The critical areas of judgement are accounting for government grants, accounting for the write down of assets
through depreciation and accounting for the pension lability. Govemment grants are accounted for as
restricted funds. The pension liability is assessed by an independent actuarial valuation. Deprecation rates
are based on the expected life of the asset.

In assessing whether there have been any indicators of Impairment assets, the Trustees have considered both
external and Internal sources of information such as market conditions, counterparty credit ratings and
experience of recoverability. There have been no indicators of impairments Identified during the current
financial year.
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2 GENERAL ANNUAL GRANT (GAG)
Under the funding agresment with the Secretary of State the Academy Trust was not subject o a limit on
the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2023 (See note 17).

3 DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2023 2022

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Devolvaed farmula capital grant - 67 67 70
BCC flxed assets donation - - - 198
BCC donaticns on conversion - - - 508
School Condition Allocation - 842 842 -
Additional Capital Allocation 141 141 -
ESFA donated assats n - - 17
Voluntary donations 86 - 86 24
LGPS pension deficit inherltied - - - {4,773)
86 1,050 1,136 (3,956)

The income from donations and capital grants was £1,136,000 (2022: £3,956,000 deficit) of which £86,000
(2022: £460,000) was unrestricted, £Nil (2022: £4,773,000 deficlt) resiricted and £1,050,000 (2022:
£357,000) restricted fixed assets.

4 FUNDING FOR THE ACADEMY TRUST'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

Unrestrieted Restricted Total Total

Funds Funds 2023 2022

DfE/ESFA grants £000 £000 £000 £000
General annual grant (GAG) (note 2) - 17,594 17,594 17,089
General annual grant (GAG} - 16-19 funding - 648 648 734
Pupil premium - 1,685 1,685 1,632
Teachers pay grant - 1 1 12
Teachers penslon grant - 24 24 32
PE and Sports grant - 74 74 74
Conversion grant - 10 10 26
Rates relief grant . 59 59 46
Natlonal tutoring programme - 139 139 207
ESFA supplementary grant - 546 546 229
Mainstream schools grant 279 279 -
Other DfE/ESFA - 59 59 13
Universal Infant Free School Meals - 105 105 59

- 21,223 21,223 20,153

Other Government grants

Special educational needs grant - 410 410 185

Pupll premium grant - 33 33 75

Other LA grants - 130 130 96
- 573 573 356

COVID-19 DfE/ESFA additlonal funding

Catch up premium - 325 325 203

Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding - 12 12 109
- 337 337 312

Other income from the academy
trust's educational opsrations

Other income - 6 6 -
Pupil catering income - 237 237 245
- 243 243 245

- 22376 __ 22,376 __ 21,086

The income from Funding for the Academy Trusts's Educational Operations was £22,376,000 (2022:
£21,066,000) of which £NIl (2022: £NIl) was unrestricted and £22,376,000 (2022: £21,066,000} restricted.
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5 OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

Funds Funds 2023 2022

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Lettings 166 - 155 134
Other Income 111 ~ 111 101
266 - 266 - 235

The income from the Academy Trusts's other trading activities was £266,000 (2022: £235,000) of which
£2686,000 (2022: £233,000) was unrestricted and £Nil (2022; £2,000) restricted.

6 INVESTMENT INCOME Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2023 2022
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Bank interest received 14 - 14 -
14 - 14 -
The income from the Academy Trusts's investment income was unrestricted.
7 EXPENDITURE | Non Pay Expenditure | Total Total
Staff Costs Premises Costs 2023 2022
£000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Expenditure on raising funds
- Diract costs - - 84 64 71
- Allocated support costs - - 50 50 38
Academy’'s educational operations
- Direct costs 15,208 - 1,434 16,732 15,545
- Allocated support costs 2,351 1,868 1,638 5,857 5,839
17,649 1,868 3,072 22,589 21,384

17,649 1,868 3,186 22,703 21,483

The expenditure was £22,703,000 (2022: £21,493,000) of which £22,278,000 (2022: £21,117,000) was
restricted, £114,000 (2022: £109,000} unrestricted and £311,000 (2022: £267,000) was restricted fixed
assets,

Total Total
2023 2022
Net (income)/expenditure for the year includes: £000 £'000
Operating lease rentals 77 92
Depreciation 3N 267
Fees payable to auditor for:
- audit 23 23

- other services 3 2
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8 CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES Total Total
2023 2022
£'000 £000
Dlrect costs - educational opsrations 18,732 15,545
Support costs - educational operations 5,857 5,839
22,589 21,384
Analysls of Support Costs
Support staff costs 2,351 3,003
Depreclation 31 267
Technology costs 228 172
Premlses costs 1,557 1,276
Legal costs - other 1 1
Other support costs 1,102 856
Govemance 307 264
5,857 5,839
9 STAFF COSTS Total Total
2023 2022
a Staff costs during the year were: £'000 £'000
Wages and salaries 12,389 11,767
Soclal securlty costs 1,224 1,239
Pension costs 3,273 4,013
16,806 17,019
Agency staff costs 753 404
Staff restructuring costs - -
Severance payments - -
Other restructuring costs -

17,649 17,423

b Staff severance contractual and non contractual payments
The academy trust paid nil (2021: nil) severance paymants in the year, disclosed In the following

bands:
2022 2021
No No
0-£25,000 - -

£25,001 - £50,000 » =
£50,001 - £100,000 - -
£100,001 - £150,000 . -

£150,000+ - -
—_— e

¢ Special staff severance non contractual payments
Included in staff restructuring costs are special severance payments totalling £Nil (2022 : £Nil}.

Individualiy, the payments were ENil)
d Staff numbers

The average number of parsons (including senior management team} employed by the academy
during the year ended 31 August 2023 expressed as whole persons was as follows:

2023 2022
Charitable Activities No No
Teachers 183 176
Administration and support - including Teaching Assistants 196 220
Management 34 33
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e Higher pald staff
The number of employees whose employas benefits (excluding employer pension costs and
employer national insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was:

No No
£60,001 - £70,000 13 12
£70,001 - £80,000 5 3
£80,001 - £90,000 1 2
£80,001 - £100,000 2 2
£120,001 - £130,000 1 .

T Key management personnel
The key management of the Academy Trust comprise the trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 3. The total amount of employes bensefits (including employer pension
contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management
personnel! for their services to the Academy Trust was £1,184,355 (2022: £842,055).

10 CENTRAL SERVICES
St Teresa Calcutta Multi Academy Company has provided the following central services to Holy
Trinity Catholic School, Holy Souls Catholic Primary School and Archbishop lIsley Catholic School

and Sixth Form;

e human resources; ® govemance services;

» financial services; s aducational support services; and
» legal services; e accounting services,

St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company charges for these services a flat percentage of
5% (2022:3.25%) of all GAG Income.

Total Total

2023 2022

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows: £'000 £'000
Holy Trinity Catholic School 244 150
Holy Souls Catholic Primary School 91 57
Archbishop lisley Catholic School and Sixth Form 335 212
The Rosary Catholic Primary School 94 64
St Chad's Catholic Primary School 58 35
St Joseph's Catholic Primary School 57 37
879 555

11 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER' REMUNERATION AND

EXPENSES

One or more Chief Executive Officer has been pald remuneration or has received other benefits
from an employment with the Academy Trust. The headteacher and othar staff trustees receive
remuneration in respect of their contracts of employment as headteacher and staff and not in
respect of their services as trustees. Other trustees did not receive any payments from the
Academy Trust in respect of their role as trustess. The value of the Chief Exscutive Officer's
remuneration and other remuneration was as follows:

| 2023 | | 2022 ]
Colin Crehan (Chief Executive Officer/Accounting Officer) {resigned 31 December 2021)
Remuneration £NIl £30,000 - £35,000
Employers pension contributions £Nil £5,000 - £10,000
Paul Ryan (Chief Executive Officer/Accounting Officer) {appointed 1 January 2022)
Remuneration £120,000 - £125,000 £65,000 - £70,000
Employers pension contributions £25,000 - £30,000 £15,000 - £20,000

During the vear ended 31 August 2023 there were £Nil (2022; £Nil) travel and subsistence
expenses reimbursed to the trustees in their role as trustees.

Other related party transactions including frustees are set out in note 29.
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12 DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INSURANCE

In accordance with normal commercial practice the academy has purchased insurance to protect
trustess' and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or cmissions occurring whilst on
academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 on any one claim. The cost of this
insurancs is included in the total insurance cost of the ESFA's RPA scheme.

13 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Leasehold
Site Land & Furniture& Computer Motor
improvements Bulidings Equipment Equipment Vehicles Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 E£'000
Cost
At 1 September 2022 57 466 385 547 20 1475
Transferred on conversion - - - - - -
Additions - - 889 128 - 1,017
Disposals - - - - - -
At 31 August 2023 57 466 1,274 675 20 2492
Depreclation
At 1 September 2022 2 15 237 209 7 560
Charged In year 3 10 121 173 4 31
Disposgals - - - - - -
At 31 August 2023 5 25 358 472 11 871
Net book value
At 31 August 2023 =52 =_=441 S 23 2 9 1621
At 31 August 2022 55 451 148 248 13 915
E———————————8——————~~1 ——————————————|
2023 2022
14 DEBTORS £000 £'000
Trade debtors 1 8
VAT recoverable 91 56
Prepayments and accrued income 626 474
Other debtors .= -
728 538
15 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR 2023 2022
£000 £000
Trade creditors 520 382
Accruals 437 384
Defemred income 380 648
Salix Loans 24 24
Other creditors 1,608 4101
2969 _ 5,539
Deferred Income
Deferred income at 1 September 2022 648 82
Resources deferred in the year 380 648
Amounts released from previous years (648) (82)
380 © 649

Deferred income at 31 August 2023

At the balance sheet date the academy was holding funds received in advance for 2023/24 for UIFSM
£64,777 (2022: £61,438), National Tutoring Programme £2,892 (2022: £Nil), school trips £Nil (2022:

£3,000) and SCA grant £310,915 (2022: £582,533)
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16 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR
Creditors include amounts not wholly repayable within 1 year as follows: 2022 2022
£'000 £'000
Salix loan 60 84

17

In September 2018 Archbishop lisley Catholic School took out an ESFA approved, interest free Salix loan of
£181,777 payable over 8 years. As at 31 August 2023, there is an amount outstanding included In creditors
falling due within one year of £23,872 (2022: £23,972), There is also an amount included In creditors falling
due after more than one year of £69,930 (2022: £83,002).

FUNDS

The income funds of the academy comprise the following balances of grants to be applied for specific

purposes:

Restricted general funds

General annual grant (GAG) (note i)
General annual grant (GAG) - 16-18 funding

DFE/ESFA grants (note ii)

Pupll Premlum (note iii)
Conversion grant (note if)

Rates relief

PE & Sports Grant - ESFA
Teacher Pay Grant

Teachers Pension Grant

Universal Infant Free School Meals
National tutoring programme
ESFA supplementary grant

ESFA mainstream funding
Coronavirus Pupil Catch Up

Other DFE/ESFA COVID-19 funding
Pupll premium - LA {note iii)

SEN - LA {note iv)

Other LA grants {note xii)

Other restricted income

School fund {note vi)

Restricted fixed asset funds
Fixed assets donation (note vii)
DFE/ESFA capital grants (note viii)
Capital expenditure from GAG
ESFA donated assets

Restricted pension scheme llability

Pension reserve (note ix)

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds

LA prior year surplus (note x)
Total unrestricted funds

Total funds

Balance at Incoming Resources Gains, Balance at
1 September Resources Expended Losses & 31 August
2022 Transfers 2023
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
1,119 17,594 {17,530) (18) 1,165
- 648 {648) - -
- 59 (59) - -
- 1,885 (1,685) - -
- 10 (10} - -
- 59 (59) -
- 74 (74) - -
- 1 (1) - "
- 24 (24) - -
105 (105) - -
- 139 {139) - -
548 (546) - -
. 279 {279} - -

- 325 (325} -
12 (12) - -

33 (33) -
- 410 (410} - -
- 130 (130} - -
- 243 (243) - -
11 “ {11) - -
1,130 22,376 (22,323) (18) 1,165
612 - (111) 24 525
142 1,050 (96) - 1,096
17 (19) 36 34
127 (85) - 42
898 1,050 {311} 60 1,697
(8,167) 45 1,437 {6,685)
(8,167) - 45 1,437 (6,685)
{6,139) 23,426 (22,589) 1,479 {(3,823)
303 366 {110} (8) 551
469 - (4) (34) 431
772 366 {114) (42) 982

{5.367) 23,792 {22.703) 1,437 (2.841)
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17 FUNDS (cont'd)

Notes

i) General Annual Grant must be used for the normal running costs of the academy. Under the funding
agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on the amount of
GAG that it would carry forward at 31 August 2023. (ses note 2)

ify Other grants received from the ESFA/DfE during the year to support with the financial needs of the
Academy during the year.

lify Pupll Premlum grant supports children from low income families placed at the academy.

iv) Special needs grant from BCC has been used to support puplls with learning or behavioural lssues by

providing teaching and teaching assistant support.
v) Other grants, mainly from BCC, has been used to improve skills for employment and behaviour in

vi) School funds are contributions recelved from parents which are used to support the Academy Trust's

activities.
vil) The gross transfer from the restricted general fund and unrestricted fund to the Salix loan fund of

£24,000 (2022: £24,000) represents the payments against the loan balance during the period.

viii) Restricted fixed assets were funded by government grants and by BCC donating fixed assets.
ix} The pension reserve represents the deficlt on the Local Govemment Pension Scheme (see nots 28).

x) Surplus cash was transferred from BCC upon conversion to academy status.



8T TERESA OF CALCUTTA MULTI ACADEMY COMPANY 38

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (cont'd)
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Balance at Incoming Resources Gains, Balance at
1 September Resources Expended Losses & 31 August
2021 Transfers 2022
Restricted general funds £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
General annual grant (GAG) (note i) 418 17,823 (17,088) (24) 1,118
DFE/ESFA grants (note ii) - 13 {13} - .
Pupil Premium (note iii) - 1,632 (1,632) - -
Conversion grant {note ii) - 26 (26) - -
Rates relisf - 46 (46) - -
PE & Sports Grant - ESFA - 74 (74) " .
Teacher Pay Grant - 12 (12) - -
Teachers Pension Grant - 32 (32) - -
Universal Infant Free School Meals - 89 (59) - -
National tutoring programme - 207 (207) - -
ESFA supplementary grant - 229 (229) - -
Coronavirus Pupil Catch Up - 203 (203) - -
Other Coronavirus Funding Support - 109 (109) - -
Pupil premium - LA {note iii) - 75 (75) - -
SEN - LA (note Iv) - 185 (185) - -
Early years funding {note xif) - 06 (986) - -
QOther restricted income - 245 {245) - -
School fund (note vi) 16 2 {7) - 11
434 21,068 (20,348) (24) 1,130
Restricted fixed asset funds
Fixed assets donation (nole vii} 458 270 (140) 24 612
DFE/ESFA capital grants {note viil) 106 70 (34) - 142
Capital expenditure from GAG 28 - (11) - 17
ESFA donated assets 192 17 {82) - 127
784 357 (267) 24 898
Restricted pension scheme liabllity
Pension reserve (note ix) {13,996} (4,773) (769) 11,371 (8,167)
(13,996} (4,773) (769) 11,371 (8,167)
Total restricted funds (12,778) 16,652 (21,384) 11,371 (6,139)
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds 152 257 (106) - 303
LA prior year surplus (nhote x) 36 436 (3) - 469
Total unrestricted funds 188 693 (108) - 772

Total funds {12,580 17,345 (21,493) 11,371 {5,367)
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17 FUNDS (cont'd)

TOTAL FUNDS ANALYSIS BY ACADEMY Total Total
Fund balances at 31 August 2023 were allocated as follows: 2023 2022
£'000 £000

Holy Trinity Catholic School 654 541
Holy Souls Catholic Primary School 254 17
Archbishop llsley Catholic School and Sixth Form ars 397
The Rosary Catholic Primary School 381 329
St Chad's Catholic Primary School 78 11
St Joseph's Catholic Primary School 321 288
Central Function 84 65
Total before fixed assets and pension reserve 2147 1,902
Restricted fixed assets fund 1,697 888
Penslon reserve (6,685) (8.1 67)
(4,988) _ (7,269)

Total (2,841) !5.367)

TOTAL COST ANALYSIS BY ACADEMY
Expendlture Incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching & Other Other
Academles Educational  Support Costs (exc
Support Staff Educational Depn)
Staff Costs Costs Supplles Total Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Holy Trinity Catholic School 3,882 502 391 640 5,425
Holy Souls Catholic Primary School 1,537 274 64 276 2,151
Archbishop lisiey Catholic School 5,978 794 626 1,205 8,603
The Rosary Catholic Primary School 1,733 174 92 303 2,392
St Chad's Catcholic Primary School 035 251 141 207 1,534
St Joseph's Catholic Primary School 981 136 56 239 1,412
Central Function 242 220 84 340 875
Academy Trust 151295 2!351 1!434 3|309 22!392
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year ended 31 August 2022 was as follows:
Teaching & Other Other
Academies Educational  Support Costs (exc
Support Staff Educational Depn)
Stiaff Costs Costs Supplies Total Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Holy Trinity Catholic School 3,565 721 326 515 5,427
Holy Souls Catholic Primary School 1,406 377 116 276 2,175
Archbishop lisley Catholic School 5,752 1,060 487 843 8,242
The Rosary Catholic Primary School 1,742 217 108 288 2,355
St Chad's Catchollec Primary School 869 313 84 171 1,437
St Jaseph's Catholic Primary School 907 180 56 136 1,279
Central Function 179 135 19 278 611

Academy Trust 14‘420 3,003 1,196 2,607 21,226
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18 ANALYSIS CF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

19

20

21

Fund balances at 31 August 2023 are represented by: Fixed
Pension General School Fund Asgets
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Restricted Restricted
Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Tangible fixed assets - . - - 1,621 1,621
Current assets 982 - 4,110 " 160 5,252
Current fiabilities - - (2,945} - (24) (2,969)
Non current liabilities - - - - (60) (60)
Pension scheme liability - (6,685) - - - (6,685)

982 (6,685) 1,165 - 1,897 (2,841)
Fund balances at 31 August 2022 are represented by:

Fixed
Penslon  General School Fund Assets
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Restricted Restricted
Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Tangible fixed assets - - - 915 916
Current assets 772 - 6,634 11 91 7,508
Current liabikities - - {5,515) - (24) (5,538)
Non current liabllities - - - - (84) (84)
Pension scheme liability - (8,187) - - - (8,167)
— 772 ___(R1G7) 1110 11 B98 __(5.367)
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 2023 2022
£'000 £000
Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements NI 78
Authorised by trustees, but not yet contracted NIl Nil
COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES
Operating leases

At 31 August 2023 the tofal of the Academy Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operzating leases was:

2023 2022
Other Other
Operating leases which expire: £'000 £'000
- Within one year 43 76
- Within two to five years 22 58
- After five years - -
70 134
RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME/(DEFICIT) TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
2023 2022
£000 £'000
Net income/(deficit) for the reporting period {as per the statement of financial
activitias) 1,089 {4,148)
Adjusted for:
Depreciation (note 13) 311 267
Interest recelved (14} -
Fixed Assets transferred from local authority (note 13) " {198)
Assets provided by DIE - (17}
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (1,050) {142)
Pension deficit inherited - 4,773
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable (note 28) (383) 454
Defined benefit pansion scheme finance cost (note 28) 338 315
Increase in debtors (190) {115)
(Decrease)/increass in creditors (2,570) 3.995

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities {2,46%) 5,184
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22 CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 2023 2022
£000 £000

Interest received 14 -
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (1,017) {90}
Capital grants 1,050 142
Net cash provided by Investing activities 47 52

23 CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2023 2022
£000 £000

Repayments of borrowing (24) (24)
Cash inflows from new borrowing = -
Net cash used In flnancing activities (24) (24)

24 ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS At 31 Aug At 31 Aug
2023 2022

£000 £000

Cash in hand and at bank 4,524 6,970
Total cash and cash equivalents 4,524 6,970

256 ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT At 1 September Cash At31 Aug
2022 Flows 2023

£000 £'000 £'000

Cash at bank 6,970 (2,446) 4,524
Overdraft - - -
6,970 {2,446) 4,524

Loans within one year (24) “ (24)
Loans within more than one year (84) - 24 {60)
Net Debt 6,862 (2,422) 4,440

26 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the perlod of the Funding Agreement, in the event of the sale or disposal by other means of any
asset for which a Government capital grant was recelved, the academy Is required either to re-Invest the
proceeds or to repay fo the Secretary of State for Education the same proportion of the procesds of the
sale or disposal as equates with the proportion of the original cost met by the Secretary of State.

Upon termination of the Funding Agreement, whether as a result of the Secretary of State or the academy
serving notice, the academy shall repay to the Secretary of State sums determined by reference to:

a) the value at that time of the academy's site and premises and other assets held for the purpose of the

academy: and

b} the extent to which expenditure incurred in providing those assets was met by payments by the

Secretary of State under the Funding Agreement.

27 MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of if being wound up while he/she Is 8 member, or within one year after he/she ceases to bea
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted

before he/she ceases to be 2a member.
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28 PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS (cont'd)
Tha academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff which is managed by Warwickshire County Councll Pension Fund. Both are
defined multi employer benefit schemes.

The total pension cost to the Academy during the year ended 31 August 2023 was £3,273,000 (2022:
£4,013,000) of which £2,006,000 (2022; £1,917,000) relates to the TPS and £1,267,000 (2022: £2,096,000)
relates fo LGPS.

The penslon costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest
actuarial valuation of the TPS relates to the period 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS to the pericd ended 31

Confributions amounting to £347,751 were payable o the schemes af 31 August 2023 (2022: £885,886) and
are included within other creditors.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pensions Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. Al
teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrclment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retiremant and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Penslon Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial schems valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carrled out as at 31
March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key
elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

» employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of penslonable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy)

» total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a notional
past service deficit of £22,000 million

s the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, Is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE
rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPL. assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in
excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate
of return including eamings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024.
The employers pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £2,006,000 (2022: £1,917,000).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The trust has
accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme, The trust has set
out above the information available on the scheme,

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit scheme, with the assets held in a separate trustse administered
funds. The total contributions made for the year ended 31 August 2023 was £1,550,000 (2022: £1,526,000)
of which employers contributions totalled £1,312,000 (2022: £1,327,000) and employees contributions
tofalled £238,000 (2022; £189,000). The agreed employers contributions for future years are 22.3% (2022:
22.3%) for each of the academies. The agreed contributions for employees are 6.9% (2022: 6.9%).

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guaraniee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding local government pension liabilities would be met by the Department
for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the Department for
Education reaffirmed its commitment io the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute published on GOV.UK,
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Princlpal Actuarlal Assumptlons

The major assumptions used by the actuary were: At 31 At 31
August August

2023 2022

% pear % per

annum annum

Discount rate 5.2% 4.3%
Salary Increases 4.0% 4.1%
Penslon increase 3.0% 31%

Sensltivity analysis for the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities were as follows:

At 31 At 31

August August

2023 2022

Approx % Approx %

increase to Employers  Increase to Employers

Liabllity Liabllity

Discount rate reduced by 0.1% per annum 328 356
Assumed penslon increased by 0.1% per annum 281 294
Salary growth increased by 0.1% per annum 54 63

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future Improvements In mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2023 2022
Longevity at age 65 retiring today years years
- Men 20.2 21.2
- Women 22.1 23.8
Longevity at age 65 retiring in 20 years
- Men 20.5 22,9
- Women 24.8 254

Fair value Falr \ialue
at 31 Aug at 31 Aug

The Academy's share of tha assets in the scheme were: 2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Equity instruments 5,169 4,425
Debt instruments 1,507 1,387
Property 533 529
Cash 303 263
Total market value of assets 7i6°2 6!604
Present value of scheme liabllitles
= Funded (7,602) (6,604)
= Unfunded {6,685) (8,167)
Total Nabllities {14,287) (14,771)
Deficit In the scheme 56,685z !8;[67!

The actual return on the scheme assets in the year was a deficit of £84,000 (2022: £180,000 deficit).
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28 PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS (cont'd)

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Financlal Activities 2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Current service cost 9208 1,781
{nterest income (310) (100)
Interest cost 648 415
Total amount recognised In the SOFA 1,267 2,098
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Movement in deflcit during the period
Deficlt in the scheme at 1 September 2022 8,167 13,996
Movement in vear:
- Transfers in on conversion - 4,773
- Employer service cost (net of employee contributions) 929 1,781
- Employer contributions (1,312) {1,327)
- Expected return on scheme assets {310) {100)
- Interest cost 648 415
- Actuarial gains {1,437}  (11,371)
Deficit in the scheme at 31 August 2023 6,685 8,167
Changes In the present value of deflned benefit obligations were as follows:
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Scheme liabilities at 1 September 2022 14,771 17,685
Transfers in on conversion - 6,362
Current service cost 929 1,781
Interest cost 648 415
Contributions by scheme participants 238 199
Benefits paid (169) -
Actuarlal gains {(2,130) {11,851)
Scheme liabilities at 31 August 2023 14,287 14,771
Changes In the fair value of academy's share of schame assets:
2023 2022
£'000 £000
Fair value of scheme assets at 1 September 2022 6,604 3,669
Transfers in on conversion - 1,589
Expected return on scheme assets 310 100
Actuarial losses {693) {280)
Contributions by employer 1,312 1,327
Benefits paid {169) -
Contributions by scheme participants 238 199
Fair value of scheme assets at 31 August 2023 7,802 6,604

The estimated value of emplovers contributions for the year ended 31 August 2024 is £1,282,000
(2023: £1,302,000).
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Archdiocese of Birmingham is a sponsoring organisation of St Teresa of Calcutta MAC with 3
members of the school board also members of the Archdiocese. St Teresa of Calcutta MAC buys
educational services from Archdiocese of Birmingham as part of a service level agreement. Membership
for the year totalled £26,793 (2022: £7,949) and other services totalling £Nil (2022: £27,932) and the
balance outstanding at 31 August 2023 was £Nil (2022: £Nil}.

Mr D Whale Is a Director of Michael Dufty Parmership Limited. The academy pald Michael Dufty
Partnership Limited £12,000 for financlal services in 2022/23 (2022: £8,000) and £Nil was outstanding at
31 August 2023 (31 August 2022; £NIl).

30 CONVERSION TO AN ACADEMY TRUST

On 1 September 2021 The Rosary Catholic Primary School, St Chads Catholic Primary School and St
Josephs Catholic Primary School converted to Academy status under the Academies Act 2010 and all the
operatlons, assets and liabilities were transferred to the St Teresa of Calcutta Multi Academy Company
from Birmingham City Council for nll consideration.

The transfers have been accounted for as.a combination that is in subsistence a gift. The assets and
liabilities transferred were valued at thelr fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the
appropriate headings with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gainf{loss) in the Statement of
Financlal Activities as donations transferred from local authority on conversion.

The following tables sets out the falr values of the Identiflable assets and liabliities transferred and an
analysis of their recognition In the Statement of Financlal Activities.

The Rosary Catholic Primary School Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted - General Fixed
Funds Funds Asset Total
Funds Funds
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Tangible fixed assets - - 86 86
Budgst surplus on LA funds 222 - 46 268
LGPS pansion deficit - (1,479) - {1,479)
Net assets/(liabilitles) 222 (1,479) 132 (1.1 25)
The above nhet assets/liabilities include £268,000 that were transferred as cash.
St Chads Catholic Primary School Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted
Funds General Fixed Total
Funds Asset Funds
£'000 £'000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets - - 68 68
Budget surplus on LA funds 112 - 7 119
LGPS pension deficit - (1,829) - {1,820}
Net assets/(liablilities) 112 (1,829) 75 =[1.642!
The above net assets/liabilities include £118,000 that were transferred as cash.
St Joseph's Cathollc Primary School Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted
Funds General Fixed Total
Funds Asset Funds
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Tangible fixed assets . - 44 A4
Budget surplug on LA funds 102 -~ 19 21
LGPS pension deficit - {1,465) - {1,465)
Net assets/(liabflities) 102 (1,465) 63 1,300)

The above net assets/liabilities include £121,000 that were transferred as cash.
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31 AGENCY ARRANGEMENTS
The academy ftrusi distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for the ESFA. In the
acocounting period ending 31 August 2023 the trust received £25,054 (2022: £28,953) and disbursed
£18,490 (2022: £17,083) from the fund. An amount of £30,397 (2022: £23,833) is included in other
creditors relating to the undistributed funds that is repayable to the ESFA.

The academy trust distributes collegiate as an agent for Birmngham City Council. In the accounting period
ending 31 August 2023 the trust received £Nil (2022: £Nil) and disbursed £31,303 (2022: £2,299) from the
fund. An amount of £179,008 (2022: £210,401) is included in other creditors relating to the undistributed
funds that is repayable to Birmingham City Council.

32 EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
There are no material adjusting or non adjusting events arising after the balance sheeat date,



